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Trustees’ Report Acadernies

The Trustees present their annual repert together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2021 to 31 Audust 2022. The annual regort sarves the purpose of both g trustees' report,
and a directors' report under company law.

The Acadermny Trust pperates eight secondary arademies ang one alternative provision academy across the North West,
North €ast and South Yorkshire regions. Its academies have a combined pupil capacity of 6,740 and had a roll of 6,206 in
the school census on 6" October 2022

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a cormpany limited by quarantee and an exernpt charity. The charitable company’s memaorangum and
articles of assaciation are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The Trustees of Consilium Academies are
aiso the irectors of the charitable company for the purposes of campany law. The charitable company operates as
Consilium Academies.

Detaus of the trustees who served during the year, and te the date these accounts are aporoved are included in the Reference
and Administrative Deta’ls on page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to cantribute 1o the assets of the Charitable Campany m the event of
it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and iabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' indemnities

The 1rust does not purchase separate insurance for trustees' indemnities as it buys into the Risk Protection Arrangement
offered by the Department for £Education, which grovides approoriate cover for Trustees' liabilities.

Method of Recruitment, Appointment and Election of Trustees

Trustees are recruited by invitation, dependent uponr their expertise, experience and skitls Members may appoint by ordinary
resclution up to 10 trustees as referenced in the articies of association (5C) and are appointed for a term of 4 years.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The tiaining and indurtion provided for new Trustees witl deoend on thelr existing experience angd is a key process in
performance management between the members and the Trust Board. Trustees routinewy consider their own training needs,
and this is discussed annuaily witk the members.

where necessary, induction will include training on educational, legat and financiai matters. All new Trustees will be given
the cpportunity to visit the Acadernies and nave the chance to meet with staff and students

All Trustees are also provided with copies of key documents, such as policies, procedures, accounts. buddets, plans and
other documents they need to undertake their role. Since there is expected to be only a small rumber of new Trustees a
year, induction will e carried out informally and will be taiiored specifically to the individual
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Organisational Structure

The Trust Board are responsible for setting the stratedic vision of the Trust, approving key policies, adopting an annual plan,
establishing rules of governance and financial policies and procedures. The Trust Board deledates to its Resources
Committee responsibility of buddet setting, monitoring, risk management and internal and external audit functicns.

The Trust deledate to its Performance Committee the responsibility for scrutiny and manitoring the performance of the
Trust.

The Executive Leadership Team, comprising the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Thief Finante and Operating
Officer, Directors of Education, Director of Assurance and Development, Director of People and Director of Estates and
Ooerations ase responsible for impternenting the strategic vision and the policies approved oy the Trust Board, ang for
providing operaticon and strategic oversight of the day-to-day activities of the Trust,

The Trust has established a strong scheme of deledation and detailed financial procedures and policigs to support the
governance of the Trust. Roles and responsibilities of Trustees, Local Academy Board Members, Trust (eaders and
Headteachers are clearly defined in the Trust's Scheme of Deledation and Finance Policies and Procedures

The Trustees meet at least on a termiy basis. Cammittees of the Trust will also meet at (east on a termly basis and repo-t
to the Trust Board. Local Acadermny Boards meet on a half-termly basis and if required reports to the Resgurces Committee
or the Tryst Board for approval in relation to non- deledated matters.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnet

The Trust Board is responsible for approving an annual pay policy which determines the arrangements for setting the pay
and remuneraticn of all members of staff within the Trust. The Trust Board are also directly responsible for setting the pay
and remuneration of the Executive Leadership Team. The Chief Executive has the deledated oversight for the pay and
remuneration of all other members of staff within the Trust, subject to review by the Trust Board.

Trustees have establishad a separate Pay Committee in order to provide additional clarity on this aspect of the Board’s work

Trade Union Facility Tirne

There were no relevant union officials during the period No empioyees spent paid time on trade union facilities during the
year, :

Retated Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Tne Trust is linked to a number of organisations thiough its Trustees ang Executive Leaders. Tre Trust has a {ransparent
process for ensyuring these relationships are understood and that transactions are at an arms-length basis. The Trust is alsc
recognised for collective bargaining purposes by atl associaled trade unions through 3 recognition agreement.

Details of related parties and transactions are set out 10 note 27.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The {rust has a sindle equality policy. We strive to ensure that the recruitment, retention and ongoing development of staff
is undertaken in a fair and equitable manner to support the Trust’s vision and values. We see all members of the Trust and

wider community of equal value:

« Whether ar not they are disabled,
»  Whatever their ethnicity, cJlture, religious affitiation, national arigin or socic-economic circumstances,

« Whichever their gender and sexual orientation; and
* Whatever their ade.
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Where an existing emplioyee becomes disabled, every effort 1s made to ensure that employment within the Trust continues.
The Trust's policy is to provide training, career development and opportunities for promaotion, which are, as far as possible,
identical to thase for other emplayees.

The Trust is focus with endaging with all members of its academy communities, including its employees. This is done
thraugh both informal and formal exercises to allow staff to share their views, along with formal survey opportunities
ttroughout the year. .

The Trust also engages with ermployees through trade union representatives The Trust has strengthened its relationships
with trade unions during the year, recagnising their place as partners in our impravement jaurney.

Engagement with suppliers, custormers and others in a business relationship with the Trust

One of the Trust’s values is that of oartnership. Consilivm Academies recognises that ‘ts external partnerships are critical
to the success af the Trust. The Trust nurtures positive relationships with key suppliers, ensuring they ynderstand and
supoart the visian, missian and values of the Trust. Whilst always seeking vatte for maney, the Trust seeks to manage risk
asppropriately and ensure acceptable quality of good and services, whilst protecting tne reputation of the Trust in its business
relationships. Intedrity is another of the Trust’s values angd through fair and equitzble procurement processes, the Trust
ensures all potential suopliers and stakenoiders are treated fairly.

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives
The Consiium Migsion

“Enriciing Lves, Inspiring Ambitions”

e are proud to be Consiliurm Acadermies, 3 Trust that believes in the urvque valve of each individual. Our vision, actions,
and purpose are guided by this principle and a dedication ta do all we can for the communities we seive,

We never put a ceiting on potential. instead, we work with our Academiies to provide high-quality education that is truly
inclusive, giving every student the same apportunities (6 develop the skitls and knowledge they need to thive i life
beyong the ciassroom.

We are rommiitted to enriching the lives of all those involved in our Trust thiough an armbitiovs, student-rentied approsch
to education,

Consitium Academies has a distinctive ethos and we are commutted to working with our acaderries to ensure that this ethos
15 realised on a daily basis, in accordance with our vatues:

Partnerships — Coliaooration is the key to sutcess We wark tadether to deliver on the promise set out in 0Jr mission
staterment.

Opportunity — Our aim of "Enriching Lives, Inspiring Ambitiors™ applies to all members of our Trust community, with our
inclusive aporoach delivering a breadth of opportunities to aive each individual the chance to fulfil their octential 2nd
prosper.

Integrity - Through our student-centred approach, advartage ang atility are never seen 3s a ticket 1o involvemert We
believe in every child's nght o high-guatity educatior and actess to amazing opportunities — irrespective of their individuat
cirgumstances. integnity at Consifium means always putting students at the heart of everything we do.

Equity — We are truly incivsve, pelieving passionately that every student should be given the skiils and supoort needed for
them to meet ther full potential. We are aspiratronal for ali of our students, and we will ensure every student has the
opocrtonities they need to achieve the nighest of ambitions.

Excellence ~ We don't settle for secongd-best, our standards are always high and we support everyone across the Trust to
4
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achieve them,

People-Centred — We genuinely want the best for each member of Consilium, that’s why everyone is treated with the highest
level of respect. Qur inclusive cuiture inspires us to be bold and engenders trust. It brings us togetner in ways that help us

make a difference.
our Alms:

e Tp ensure that everything we do has a focus on kelping children and young pecple to succeed to their potential

academically, socially and emationally.
s To instit a passien for life-long learning and continued improvement so that our academies, staff and students can

grasp their aspiraticns and ambitions.
e To focus on the development of the whale child by providing exciting and challenging learning and extra-curricular

opportunities and experignces.
s To create a family of academies that is inclusive and embraces diversity, where atl members of the community feel

supported, iInspired and empowered 0 succeed.
*  To ensure that all stakeholders are seen as partners in our work with the communities we serve.

Strategies and Activities
The Trust has established a three-year strategic pian based on three key strategic priorities, as follows:

Schools of choice - We are cammitted to aur vision to provide an inclusive offer to the comsmunities we serve. We will ermbed
our position within our existing cormmunities by develeping our hubs to uttimately provide primary, secondary, alternative,
and specialist provision, ensuring that we have the expertise to deliver each provisien effectively and in accordance with

our commitrment to excellence.

Employer ef choice - At Consilium Academies we believe in the unique value of every individual in our diverse cocrmmunities,
incluging ocur colleagues. We will develop a sector-leading approsch tc promoting Equatity, Diversity, and Inclusion by
learring from the best practice that exists in and outside of ecucation, embedding a culture where difference is embraced,
where we learn from each other, and where every individual is empowered to be themsetves

Trust of choice - We will continue to extend our reach by seeking opportunities to deveiop further hubs that follow the same
inclusive principles. but only where we feel that this is in the best interests of the relevant community and where this

growth will not be to the detriment of our existing communities

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have referred to the quidance contained in the Chatity Commission's general guidance an
Public Benefit when reviewing the charity's aims and objectives and in planning future activities. The key public benefit
delivered by the Trust is the provision of high quality education to the students The Academy seeks to provide the cultural,
physica, spiritual, as well as academic development of students.

Alt our Academigs are used as a resource by the 1ocal community. They are used by community groups randing from sports
clubs, senior citizen activities and a vouth Club. The Academies’ lettings oolicies provide discounted rates for some

comeminity groups.
STRATEGIC REPORT

School Improverment

The schaol improvement journey at {onsiliom Acadermies has continued 1o accelerate following the substantial increase in
leadershup capatity. The structure and capacity for school improverment has improved significantly. The central school
improvement team consists of 10. FTEs, each with significant experierice of schoeol teadership. Twe members of the School
Improvement Team are practicing Ofsted Inspectors. This capacity is supplemented by Subject Networks led by Cansilium

5
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Leaders of Education which are increasingly ensuring that every student in the Trust benefits from the best that we have to
offer. As a result, the pace and focus of school improvement activity continues to have impact on the quality of provisian.

The Trust's setf-evaluation framework demonsirates the considerable school improvement achievements in the last
academic year. The Trust's Self-evaluation historically suggested that five schools were inadeguate, whilst three required
impravement. The Trust did not evaluate any schools to be goed at this time. in September 2022, the Trust now evaluates
five schools to be good, and four to require improvement. These judgements have been validated by Ofsted with four
inspections occurring over the Spring ang Summer Terms of 2022, The improvernents in Ofsted judgements demonstrates
the significant progress made by the Trust in improving the schools. Throughout the peried of instabilty due te¢ the
Pandemic, the relentless and determined appreach to improving provision for young peopte has resulted in five schoals
being removed from a category of concern. Leadership and managdement is now judged to be qood in the majority of our
schools,

The Trust's interna: Summary Self Evatuation in Septermber 2019 identified nine areas as being ‘weak’ and fiwve other areas
as hawing 'spme weakness' Jn Septerrber 2019, no areas were emerging 25 a strength and no a eas were identified as
being strong. Following a thorough review of the evidence of the prodress made by the Trust since then, we now identify
five areas of the framework as being ‘strond’ and these inctude clarity of purpese, understanding of needs, building capacity
for impravement, kngwing schools quantitively and Governance skills and structures. Seven areas of the Frarmework are now
emerging as strengths. The improvements identified through the self-evaluation process is demanstrable of the increased
capacity within the ordanization to improve the provision for oar young pecple.

The trust is proud of the strong collaooration that exists across the arganisation. ‘We have utilised the skills of our middie
and senior leaders across the trust to refine the curriculum so that it is equitable for all our young people in the trust. The
curricuturr is well sequenced, coherent and ambitious far gl In addition, we have develaped and implemented a trust wide
assessment stratedy which is enabling us to have improved canfigence in the progress that our young people are making
The information is now rruch maore reliable and valid and can be uvsed to make accurate comparisons acrass the Lrust

Staff across the trust are complimentary about the approach to appraisal, whicn cansists of a cycle of professional
devetopment review (POR}. The PDR process is centred arpund each individual’s aspirations for their career, and encourages
horiest, open and transparent dialoque about professional develaprnent. The POR process is camplimented by the work of
the Centre for Professional Learning {CfPL) which focuses its work on both internal and external professional develeprment
experiences for all staff. The work of the CfPL is having demonstrable impact on both the guality of teaching and the
ongoing development of teadership capacity.

Whist the Pandermuc continues to offer some significant challenges to scnooss and to the operations of the Trust, we have
given careful consideration to the financial implications and as a result have mitigated much of the financial risk o date.
We have significant capacity within the leadership of trust finace which rmeans that the risk poses by current funding issues
15 not significantly affecting the pperation of the ordanisation.

Dfsted inspections
In March 2022, Thornhiil Academy were subjected to a Section 5 Ofsted inspecuion, It was previously inspected i 2017

and plated in Special Measures by the Ofsted team. The Marcn ZG2¢ inspection judged the school as Reguires [marovement
which is demonstrable of the impact of leadership at both school and trust level

Moorside High Schoot was also mspected under Section 8 of the Inspection Framewark in March 2022, In faruary 2020,
the trust jugdged Moorside High Schocol te be inadeguate across the four judgment areas  Leadership of the trust and the
school have rapidly improved Moorsige High School since Januery €020 and in March 2022, the schogi was judged to be a
goad school

In.anuary 2017, Heworth Grange was judded to be an inadequate School and was also placed in Special Measures. In April
2022, pewarth Grange was judded to Require Impravement following a Section § inspection and the teamn recognised that
the school 'is on a journey of transformation’. This is again a demanstratior of the ieadership capac ity within the trust,

In June, Ofsted agreed witn the trust’s evaluation of the prowvision at Buile Hili Acacerny anc judded that the school Requires
improvement. Ofsted said that leaders and teachers have raised their expectatians of what pupils can achieve ™ Buile Hill
continues to make imprevernents and the quality of education is makirg streng dains

6
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Key Performance Indicators ‘ )

The trustees consider the following to e the key finarcial performance indicatars for the period 1 September 2021 ta 31
Auqust 2002,

2022 2021

income: Total DFE/ESFA income (excl capital) £42,563k £41 504k
Total income {excl conversions) £46,673k £45.214k

Staffing: Total staff costs £37,678K £36,034k
Staff costs to ESFA income % 89% B7%

81% 80%

staff costs to total income %
Expenditu-e; Total expenditure (excl. depn) £48 544k £46,171k
Staff costs to total experditure % 78% 78%

Trustees consider these KPI's to be in line with expectations and comparable to relevant available bencnmarking data.

Going Concern

After making approptiate enguiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to cantinue in gperational existenice for the foreseeable future. Trystees are confident that budgets and
forecasts adequately account for additional costs relating to government announced unfunded pay increases, increasing
inflation and the energy cast crisis and that there is no material risk to the Trust's ahility to continue in operationial existence
for the foreseesble future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details redarding the adoption cf the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting

Palicies.

Promoting the success of the company

Trustees have a duty to promete the success of the Trust to achieve its charitable purposes and in doing sc, are required by
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 to have regard ta tre following:

The likely corsequences of any decisicns in the long-term - atl decisions are taken with a view of maintaining or
improving the [ong term educational, operational and financial performance of the Trust.

e The interests of Trust's employess — Please -efer to page 3
The need tc foster the Trust's business relaticnships with suppliers, customers and cihers — Please refer to page 4

The impact of the Trust's operations on the community and the environment ~ The Trust is committed ta
developing strong community relationships while alse considering tne environmental impact of it's operations

with the aim of reducing impact tc an absolute minimum.
The desirability of tne Trust maintaining & reputation for high standards of bysiness conduct — A key value of the
Trust is integrity, which is key to decision making in order tc protect the Trust's reputation and ensdring hign

standards of business conduct
e The need tc act fairly as between members of the company.

fFinanciat review

Maost of the Multi Acaderny Trust income is obtained fram the €ducaticn and Skiils Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form cf
recurrent grant, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes ard included within the furding Adreement between

the Serretary of State for Education and Consilivm Academies

The grants received from the DfE during the period ended 31 August 2072 and the associated expenditure are sNown as
restricted funds in the statement of financial activities

The Multi Academy Trust also receives grants for capital expenditure from the DfE. In accordance with the Charities
Statement of Recommended Practice, ‘Accountirg and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2019) and the Academies Accounts
Directior 2021-2022 such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset
fund The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reguced by annual depreciation charges over the expected useful Life of the

7
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assets concerned.

During the period ended 31 August 2022 tne Multi Academy Trust received income of £42,563k from the DfE in respect of
General Annual Grant and other grants, and £944k in the form of DfE capital and maintenance drants. it atso generated
its own income of £738k, as shown in notes 4 and 5 to the accounts, and received donated assets of £160k in respec: of
the DfE laptop scheme. During the year the Trust has continued to face significant cost pressure in relation to COVID-19,
in particular in supply costs due ta a continued increase in staff sickness absence as a resuit of COVID-18

Total expenditure for the pericd amounted to E52,495k which included £3,951k of depreciation.

The net surplus for the period before actuanat ad;ustments ansing from the Local Government Pension Scheme, depreciation
and donated assets was £285k.

At 31 August 2022 the net book value of fixed assets was £109,421k The assets were ysed exclusively for providing
education and the associated support services to the students of the Acacemies,

The Muiti Academy Trust held total fund baltances at 31 August 2022 of £110,355k comprising a surplus af £725k on
restricted general funds, a surplus of £853k on unrestricted general funds and £131,074k on the fixed asset funds. The
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) was in deficit by £2,397k at the period end.

Reserves Policy

The Board of Truslees reviews the reserve tevels of the Academy Trust annually at the yezi-end and as a part of its budget
planning process This review en:umpasses the nature of the income and expenditure streams, the Teed Lo match income
with commitments and the nature of reserves. Trustees determine what the level of uncommitted reserves snould te. The
aim is to provide sufficient working capital to cover detays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion
to deal with unexpected emergencies such as urdent maintenance.

As part of its monitering of in-year financial performance the Board of Trustees reviews the forecast impact on reserves and
cansiders this as a part of its mediym-term financial nlanning. The Board of Trustees established a reasonable level of
restricted deneral reserves at the period-end in arder tg enable it to both manage unforeseen emerdencies and also to
enable planned yse over the medium term to tessen any buddet shortfalls.

The targeted level of reserves required is considered to be the equivalent of one manths’ payroll costs across the trust. This
1s forecast to be approximately £2.726k far 2021/22 At the end of the year free reserves totalled £1.678k and were,
therefore, short of the reguired level by £1,048k. [he Trust will continse to sttempt to make cost savings te increase the
reserves to the required level sustainably, whilst ensunng that the trajectory of school improverrent 1s maintained.

Under Accountirg Standarg FR5102 it 1s necessary to cha-ge projected deficits on the Local Government Pensicn Scherre
that is pravided far aur nan-teaching staff to a specific iestricted reserve. As at 31 August 2022 the deficit on this reserve
amounted to £2.397k. It should be roted however that this does not present the Academy Trust with a current tiguidity

probiem.

investment Policy

The Acaderny Trust is firrmly committed ta ensuring that all funcs under its control are administered in surh 3 way as 10
maxmse returr while minimesing risk Trestees do not consider the investment of surplus funds as a primary activity, bt
rather a requi-erment for the effective managemant of funds.

Trustees’ managemert of casn fiow snould ersure that there are always sufficiert funds in the main bank accounts to cover
gperational costs | he Acaderry Trust will Seex to ensure that any cash not required for operating expenses Is place on

deposit at the mast favourabie rate
Where significant fungs have been accumulated that are not required in the short term for operational expenses, or as part
of a plannad surplus for & specific project, Trustees may consider the investment of these funds in order to gene-ate a longer

terrn income or capital fung
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Principat Risks and Uncertainties

The Trustees have assessed the major risks 1o which the charitable company is expesed, in particular those relating to
teaching, provision of facilities and other operational areas of the Academy Trust, and its finances. The Trustees have
implemented a number of systemns to assess risks that the Academy Trust faces, especially in the operatioral areas (€. in
relation to teaching, health and safety, bullying and schaol trips) and in relation to the control of finance. They have
introduced systems, including pperational procedures (e g. vetting of new staff and visitors, supervision of school drounds)
and internal financiat controls in order tc minirmise risk. Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured
they have adeguate insurance cover. The Academy Trust has an effective system of interna; financial controls and this s
expiained in more detail in the following statement.

The Academy Trust continues to develop and embed the system of internal control, inclugding firancial, operational and r'sk
management which 15 desigried to protect the Academy Trust's assets and reputation.

Tha Executive Leadership Tearn undertakes a comprehensive review of the risks to which the Acadermy Trust is exposed.
They identify systems and procedures, including specific preventable actions which should mitigate any potential impact
on the Academy Trust, The internal controls are then implemented and the subsequent year's appraisal witl review their
effectiveness and progress against risk mitigation actions. In addition to the annuat review the Trust Executive Team also
consider any risks which may arise as a result af any new area of work being undertaken oy the Academy Trust.

Arisk register is maintained at the Trust level which 1s reviewed at least annually by the full Trust Board and more frequently
by the Audit Committee and Executive leadership Team The risk register identifies the key risks, the likelihood of those
risks occurring, their potential impact on the Acadermy Trust and the actions being taken to reduce end mitigate the risks.

Risks are prioritised using a consistent scoring systern,

The Trustees confinm that the major risks to which the Trust is exposed have been reviewed, in parlicylar those relating to
the specific teaching, pravision of facilities and other operationat areas of the Academy, and its finances. The Trustees are
satisfied thaet systems and procedures are in place to mitigate the exposure to major risks.

Cutlined below is a description of the principal risk factors that may affect the Academy Trust Not ali the factors are within
the Academy Trust's control. Other factors besides those listed below may atsc adversely affect the Acade iy Trust.

* Lincertainty with regard to the impact of future Government funding reforms

s Potentisl difficulties in reaching capacity in the constituent Academies

o Risks arising from the Trust's manadgement of its facilities

s Complignce risks surrounding safecuarding and other key aspects of the Trust’s provision

= long term impact of Covid-19 on funding levels and gn stugents’ learning

Cost pressures arising from increasing energy costs and general inflationary price increases

These risks are mitigated in a number of ways including
« Ensunng the Academy Trust is rigorous in delivering high quality education and training
A comprehensive marketing/PR programme including activities for primary pupils and parents
Rigorous monitoring of financial activities ensuring vatue for maoney
+ Maintenance of a detailed preperty strategy to ensure maxkimum value 1% abtained from the Academy Trust's

premises.
Robust quality assurance system to ensJre systems in piace for safequargding remain effective.

Fundraising

The Trust carries out a limited amourt of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which it operates, All fundraising
15 underta<en at indivizuat scheol level and any funds 1aised remain within the schocl which raised them, unless spacifically

rarsed for a charitable donation

In circumstances where fundrassing is undertaken, systems and rontrols are in place 1o separate ana protect funds The
trust s mindful of its responsibilities under the Charities (Protect:on and Social iInvestment) Act 2016 and leqgal rules, and

9
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ensures all activities are aqreed and manitored 3t Senior Leadership Team level. Recognised standards are applied to ensure
that fundraising is open, honest and respectful, protecting the public from undue pressure to donate. The Trust does not
usually work with professional fundraisers or companies who carry out fundraising on its behalf.

Comnplaings are handied and manitored through the Trust's complaints procedure. During the year no complaints or issues
have arisen as a result of the fundraising activities

Streamtined energy and carbon reporting

1 September 1 September
2021 to 31 2020 to 31

August 2022 August 2021

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and enerdy use data for the pericd

|
|
rb |

Enerdy cansumptian used to calculate emissions J 9,242,547 9,593,370
Scope 1 emissions in roetyic tonnes CO2e /F
Gas consumption ‘ 1,233 30 1,343
Owned transport - Min-ouses . 065 447
Total scope 1 | 1,233.95 1,347.53
1
i SRR S
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes C02e |
Purchased electricity i 468 461

- — J |

| Scope 3 emissions in sretric tonnes CO2e }

, Busiress travel in employee owned vehicles 1476 1677
Totai gross emissions 1n metric tonnes CDZ?dkm— 1,717.05 1,825.78
intensity ratig !

i | 0.30 ;
Tannes COZe per pupil 0.28 | -=3Y

We have followed the 2G19 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines.
We have alsc used the GHG Reporting Protccol - Corporate Standasd arnd have used the 20¢2¢ UK
Gavernmrent's (orve s.an Factors far Compary Reporting

antification and reporting Meth - J

Intensity megsurement :

The chasen irtensity measurement ratio is total gross emissicns in metrnc tonres C32e per pucil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

i
|
I
1
i !
We nave undertaken significant capital projects across a nember of sites ir order to address tighting .
inefficiencies We nave invested in video conferengng technology for staff meetings, to reguce the need |
for travel hetween sites, and aie luoking at ~eat decarborisatian plars to reduce cu- carbon footoriat,

10
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Plans for Future Pericds
The main objectives for the coming year are:

* 10 support Academies through the ongoing recovery fram Cowid-19, ensuring students get the suppart they need to
rapidly recover from any gaps in their learning

» Ta continue ta embed the central suppart and schaaol improvement structures, ensuring roles and respensitilities are
clear and that the impact on school improverment 15 demanstrable.

o To ernbed g professional development prograrmme that provides support and training for staff at all stages of their

career.
= Develop a sector-leading approach to equality, dversity and inclusion, ensunng that the values set out in the
Consilium Charter are tangible within this approach and that all colleagues and students ‘eet included, valued and

embraced.
e Embed aur new strategic plan, ensuring that we deliver schools of choice, we are an employer of cheice and that we

are viewed by others in the sector as 3 Trust af chaice,

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

Consitium Academies and its Trustees do not act as third party custodial trustees.

Auditor
insofar as the Trustees are aware:

o There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor s unaware.
» {he irustees have taken all steps that they ought ta have taken to make themseives aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

RSM UK Audit LLP, having expressed their willingness 1o continue in office, will be deemed reappointed for the
next financial year in accordance with section 487(2) of the Companies 2006 Act, unless the charitable company receives

netice under section 488(1) of the Campanies Act 2006.

Report of the Trustees, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by srder of the Board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on 8 Decemnber 2022 and signed on the board's behaif by:

Hpid

M Fleetwood
Chair of Board of Trustees

11
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Scope of Responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have pverall responsibility for ensuring that Consitium Academies has an effective ang
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise, However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of fallure 1o achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and hot absolute assurance against
material misstatement of {oss.

The Beard of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility 1o the Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and dooed financial manadement and in accordance with
the requirements and respensibilities assigned to it in the funding adreen-ent between Consilium Academies and the
Secretary of State fot Education. They are alsg respensible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses
or bregkdeowns in internal control.

Governance

The informatian o governance inctuded here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the
Statement of Trustees Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 5 times during the year. The Board has met
less than & times a year however the Board have been informed by the detailed reviews and challenge of the sub-
committess whose attengance is detailed on page 13 Attendance during the year at rmeeting of 1ne Board of Trustees was
as follows

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
P woodmancy {Chair) 5 5
B Peck 4 5
D Chong 4 5
C Blessed 4 5
Y Brown 4 5
M Vevers 3 5
R Elvin 2 5
! Knowles {resigned 14 October 2021) 0 1
M Fleetwood (appointed 15" December 2021) 3 3

Review of Ggvernance

The Trust Board reviews its structure annualty (inctusive of Scheme of Delegaticn) based or a robust process of seif-
evaluation. The Trust has implemented & committee structure, including & Resources Corrmitier, Audit Commuttes, Pay
(ommittee ang Performance Committes. The purpose of this structure 15 to allow Trustees to have a detailed and focussed
review of key aspects of the Trust's operations. Trustees consider this strycture t0 have been successful,

The Trust will continue to ensure that setf-evaluat-on and review remains part of its annual dovernance cycle

in additior: to this. i Sumrmer 2322 the Trust commissioned @ wide ranging review into it's Governance arrangements. At
the time of this report being written the review, it's putcormes and proposed act'ons were still being undertaken however it
is expected that changes wili be made to the governarce structure, meeting scheduie and Trust wide dovernance
arrangements

The Resaurces Committee is a sub-rammittee of the main Boa-d of Trustees Its purpose is to approve and monitar the
Trust's buddet and oversee and reg.late controls and procedures it has been prom nent m moenitornng and planning for the
curriculom fed firancial pianning and ensuring that adequate resources are avadatle to suzpott the fulfilment of the
strategic plan.

12
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
£ Woodmancy 4 4
G Blessed 4 4
D Chong 3 4
R Elvin 4 4

The Trust established 2 separate Audit Cornmittee during the year, which is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees.
Its purpose is to oversee the Trust's approach to the management of risk, including the wark of the internal and external

augitor and report to the Trust Board as required.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
b Chong 2 4
P Wongmancy 4 4
G Blessed 4 4
R Elvin 4 4

The performance committee is also a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to ensure effective
manadement of the schoal improvernent team and tq monitor the Trust’s pragress in improving standards

Attendance at the meetings in the year was as follows

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
B Peck ’ 4 4
Y Brown 1 4
M Vevers 4 4
M Fleetwood 3 3

Conflicts of interest

The Trust manages conflicts of interest primarily through the maintenance of an up-to-date and complete register of
interests. Any conflicts of interest are disclosed at each meeting and the registes updated accerdingly. In addition to this,
staff annually complete a self declaration of interest which is available to key decision makers.

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the Acaderry Trust deivers good value in the
use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for moeney refers to the educational and wider
societal outcgmes achieved in returin for the taxpaver resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benckmarking data where available The Accounting Officer fer the Acaderry Trust has delivered impraved value for money

during the year oy:

e Maintaining a clear focus on the use of integrated curriculum and financiat planning, led by the Trust’s Chief Finance

and Operating officer
s [mbedding a GAG pooling micdel to support the more efficient and effective degloyment of resources across alt

schools within the Trust
s Regularly reviewing staffing structures with ir schaol leaders 1o ensure efficient use of resources at all times

13
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The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The systern of internal control is designed to manade risk tc a reasonable tevel rather than to eliminate ail risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore onty provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness
The system of internal controt is based on an on-qoing process designed to identify and pricritise the risks to the
achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, ta evaluate the likelihcod of thase risks being realised and the
impact shoJld they be realised, and ta manage thern efficiently, effectively and economically. The systemn of internal controt
has been in place in Censilium Academies for the period 1 Septermber 2021 to 31 Audust 2022 and up to the date of
appraval of the annual repart and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees. has reviewed the <ey risks to whick the academy trust is exposed together with the aperating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Beard of Trustees is of the view
that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Acaderny Tryst’s significant risks that
has been in place for the pericd 2 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annwual report
and financial statermems. This process is reguiarly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy Trust's systemn of internat financial control 1s based an a framework af redutar manadement infarmation and
administrative procedures including the sedregation of duties and a system of deledaticn and accountabuility. In particular,
it includes:

= comprehensive budgeting ang menitoring systems with an annual budget and periadic financial reports which are
reviewed and adreed by the bcard of trustees;

« reqular reviews by the Resources Comimiltee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts

and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure prodgrammes;

setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

ciearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capial investment) guidelines;

delegation of autharity and sedredaticn of duties;

identification and management cf risks,

* & @

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appcint Haines
Watts as internal auditor. This ootion has been chosen because Trustees felt that an external view of the Tryst's systems
of internal controt would provide dood value for meney and sufficient assurance given their expertise in the field.

The auditor's role includes giving advice on financisl matters and performing a range of checks on the Acadermy Trust’s
financial systerms. In particular, the checks carried out in the currert period included a3 review of the Trust’s budgetary control
arrangements, HR processes and estates management processes '

Periadicaily, the auditar reports 16 the board of Trustees, through the audit cammittee on the operat ar of the systems ¢f
control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsibitities and annually prepares an annual summary
report to the committee outt'ning the areas reviewed, key findings, recormmendatiors and conciusions to help the
committee ronsider achions and assess year on year progress. The internal auditor has detivered their schedule of work as
planned, with no significant control issues arising of their work All recommendations are being actioned and will be
implemented in 8 timely fashicn

Review of Effectiveness
£s Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Fas resporsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the systerr of internal control

During the year in guestion the review has been infarmed by

e the work of the internal reviewer;

¢ the work of the external auditor;

e the wark of the executive tearm members within the acagdemy trust whe have responsibibity for the development
and mamntenance of the internal cortrol framewors.
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The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of thg system of interral control

by the Resgurces Committee and a plan tg address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place

Approved by order of the members of tne Board of Trustees on 8 Decernber 2022 and signed or its behalf by:

@‘d T
-
rd

M Fleetwood ' D Clayton
Chair of Board of Trustees Accounting Dfficer
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance Academnes

As accounting officer of Consilium Acadernies | have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust Board and the
tducation and Skills Funding Adency (ESFA) of material irrequianty, imorcpriety and non-compliance with ESFA terms and
conditions of funding, under the funding adreement N place petween the Trust and the Secretary of State for €ducation. As
part of my consideration | Fave had due regard to the reguirements of the Acadery Trust Handbook 2021

} confirm that 1and the academy trust board of trustess are able to identify any matenat irreqular or improper use of funds
by the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding adreement
and the Acaderry Trust Handbook 2021

i confirmm that no instances of materiat irregularity, imprapriety of funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. if
any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified te the board of trystees and ESFA.

David Clayton
Accounting Officer
8 December 2022
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities Acccemice

The trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparing the Trustees' Repor: (inctuding the Stratedic Report} and the financial statements in accordance with the
Atademies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Adenry. United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {Uruted Kinddom Generaly Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financiat year. Under company law the trustees
must not approve the fimancial statements uniess they are satisfiec that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of its incoming rescurces and application of resources, including its income and expenditure,
for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to:

= select suitable accourting policies and then apply them consistently
= ohserve the methods and prinriples in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to

clee
*  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonabte and prudent
*  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosea and explained in the financial statements
*  prepare the financial statements on the going concerr basis unless it is ndppropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in busiress

The trustees are responsible for keepirg adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pasition of the charitable company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safequarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and

detection of fraud and other irreqularities.

The trustees are responsibie for ensuring that in its conduct and operatien the charilaste cotmpany applies financial and
other controls, which conform with the recuirements both of propriety and of good financial managemert. They are also
responsitbie fo; ensuring grants received from ESFA/DFE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and intedrity of the torporate and financial information included on the
charitable company’s website. Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the merrbers of the board of trustees on 8" December 2027 and signed on its behalf by,

ypend

Martin Fleetwood
Chair of Board of Trustees
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Consilium Academies for the year ended 31 August 2022

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Consilium Academues (the “charitable company”) for the year ended 31 August 2022
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and notes to the financial
statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is appiicabie law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Finarcial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Iretand” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and the Academies Accounts Direction
2021 to 2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

1 gur opinion the financial statemeints:
= give atrue and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2022 and of its incoming resources
and application of resources, inciuding its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;
s have been properly prepared in accoroance with United Kingdomn Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by the Education ana
Skills Funding Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical reguirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financiai statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and aporopriate to provide a basis for our opinion. '

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting in the

preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
ndividually or collectvely, may cast significant daubt on the charitable campany's ability to cantinue as @ going concern for a
neriod of at least twelve manths from when tne financial statements are authorised for issue

Cur responsibi ities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the re’evant sections of
this report

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Trustees report other than the financia: staterents and our
auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Trustees report. Qur opireon
on the firancial statements does not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any farm of assurance conciusian thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the othe” information anq, in doing 30, consider whether the other information is materialy
inconsistent with the financial statements or pur knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or ptherwise appears to be
materially misstated. |f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaterents, we are required to
cetermine whether this gives rise to a material misstatemen: in the finantia statements themselves. If, basec nn the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in gur gpinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the mformation given in the Trustees Report, which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report prepared for
the purposes of company law, for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and

s the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report included within the Trustees Report have been prepared in accordance

with applicable legal requirements,

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge an¢ understanding of the charitable company and its environment gbtained in the course of the

audit, we have not rdentitied material misstatements in the Directors’ Report or the Strategic Reportincluded within the Trustees
Report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to yau if, in our opinion.
»  adequate acLounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
vranches not visited by us; or
+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,; or
s certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As exp'ained mere fully in the Statement of Trustees responsibii‘ties set out on page 17, the Trustees {who act as trustees for the
charitabie activities of the charitable company are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible far the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s abiiity to continue as a
going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operaticns, or have no realistic alternative but to do

50.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia: statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repert that includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance ts
a high tevel of assurance, but is not 3 guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, indivicdually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to cbtain sufficient
appropnate audit evidence regarding comgpliance with iaws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of
materiai amounts and disciosures in the financial statements, to perform audit procedures to heip dentify instances of non-
compliance with other laws and reguiations that may have a material effect on the firancial statements, and to respond
appropriately to identified or suspected non-compliance with ‘aws and -egulations identified during the audit

In relgtion 10 fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements due to fraud, to cbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of material misstatement
due 1o fraud through des:gning ang impiementing approp-iate responses and to respond appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud

identified during the audit.
|49
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However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, to ensure that the
entity's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of taws and regulations and for the prevention and detection

of fraud.

|7 identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit engagement team.

» obtained an understanding of the nature of the sector, including the jegai and regulatory framewaork that the charitable
company operates in and how the charitable campany is complying with the tegal and regulatory framework;

+ inguired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and assessment of the risks
of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alteged instances of fraud;

s discussed matters about non-compliance with faws and regulations and how traud migh* occur including assessment of
how and where the financial statements may be susceptibie to fraud

As 2 result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial
statements are FRS 102, Charities SORP (FRS 102}, Comparies Act 2006, tducation and Skills Funding Agency's Academy Trust
Handbook and Academies Accounts Direction. We performed audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a
meterial impact on the financial statements which included reviewing the financiai statements inctuding the Trustees Report

The mopst significant laws and regulations that have an ndirect impact on the financial statements are those in relation to the
Education Inspection Framework under the Education Act 2005 (as amended), Keeping Children Safe in Education under the
Education Act 2002, the UK General Data Protection Regulation {UK GDPR} and the Data Protection Act 2018 we performed audit
procedures to inguire of management and those charged with governance whether the charitable company is in compliance with
these law and regulations and inspected correspondence with regulatory authorities

The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the area where the finantia! stazements
were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed included bul were not limited to
testing manual journal entries and other adjustments, evaluating the business rationale in relation to significant, unusual
transactions and transactions entered into outside the normal course of business and challenging judgments and estimates.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is iocated on the Financial Reporting
Councii’s webs-te at http://www frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibifities This description forms part of our aucitor’s report.

Use of our report

This repert is made solely to the charitable company’s members, a5 a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Par: 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken <o that we might state to the charrtable campany's members those
matters we are reguired to state to themn an auditor’s report and for no otner purpose. To-he fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility ta anyone other than the chasitable company anc the charitable company’s
members as a bady, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the epinions we have formed.

Karen Aiuggrave

Karen Musgrave {Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK AUDIT LLP, Statutary Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Bluebell House

Brian Johnson way

Preston

PR2 SPE

pDate  09/12/22
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Staterment of Financial Activities

O

For the year ended 315 August 2022 (including Income and Expenditure Account)

incame and €ndowments from :

Donations anc capital grants
Transfer frum Local avthor'ty a0 conversion
(rnaritable activities:
Funding fo- the Trust's educational operatians
- SCTY
Other traging acthities
Investments

Tatal

Expenditure on
Cnaritable activities
- Acaderny trus: educationa. operations
SOITT

Total

Net income / {expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Other recognised dains and losses
RemeasJdrement of net definad benefi:
naligations

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total tunds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Note

3
28

4

5

6,7.8
28

iz

26

Restricted Restricted

Consilium

ACauermies

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Fungs Funds Funds 2022 2021
£000 £000 ECGO £000 £000
1 1,104 1,105 1,568

- - 98

121 45,708 24,829 42,637

- - 272

738 738 736

] 1 1
860 44,709 1,104 45,673 45312
770 47227 4,498 52,495 49,506

) ; . - 592
770 47,227 4,498 52,495 50,098
90 {2,518} (3,394) (5,822} (4,786)

1125 125 - -
21715 21,715 {1,372)
ag 19,0672 {3,269} 15,893 {6,158)
863 (20,744} 114,343 94,462 100,620
953 {(1,672) 111,074 110,355 94,462

21



Consilium Academies

Balance Sheet as at 31% Augqust 2022
Company Number: 09495671

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Intangibie assets

Current assets
Cebtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Current Liabilities
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts failing due after more than gre year

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined henefit penson scherme tabiiity

Total net assets

fFunds of the Trust:
Restricted funds
- Restricted fined asset fund
- Restricted general fund
- Pensan reserve
Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Yotal funds

Note
12
13

14

15

16

26

i7
17
i7

17

@ Consilium
Agarke ey

2022 2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £600 £000
109,421 112,423
1750 2.118
5,358 4108
7108 6,316
(3.736) (2.952)
3,372 3,364
112,793 115.787
4 (51
112,752 115.736
(7,397} (21.274)
110,355 " 94,462
111,074 114,343
725 530
2.397) (21274
109,402 93,599
953 863
110,355 94.462

The financial staterrents on peges ©1 to 45 were approved by the board of trustees, and authonsed for issue on BY

Decerrber 2022 and are signed on their heha.f oy

A Ebd

Martin Fleetwood
Charr of Board of Trustees
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31% Audust 2022

Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 2l
Cash ftows from investing activities
Divideng, interest ard rents frem investments

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DIE, capital donations and other Lagital income

Cash flows from financing activities

Chandge in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting periog

{ash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year
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2022 2021
£000 £000
1,003 {1,167)
1 1
(549) {1,179
1,105 1,568
157 390
1,160 (777)
4,198 4975
5,358 4,198
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 315 Auqust 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

The Trust ss a limted company incerporated in England and Wales and limited by guarantee. Jts registered office is Floor 5,
1 City Approach, Albert Street, Cocles, Satfard, M30 0BL. Its principat activity is education

1.1. Basis of Preparation

The financial staterments af the Trust, which is  public benefit entity under FRS102, have been psepared under the historical
cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 162).
the Accounting and Reporting by Charities Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporsting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Acagemies Accounts Directior 2021 ta 2022 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Campariies Act 2006,

The principat accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set cut below These policies
have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in reiation te the finanoal s1atements,
to all the years presented, unless gtherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in sterling which is also the function currency of the Trust.

Monestary arngunts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole £1,000, except where olnerwise
indicated.

1.2. Going Concern

The Trustees assess whnether the yse of doing concern « appropriate 1.e. whether there are any material uncertainties retated
to events or conditions tnat may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to continue as a gaing cancern The
Trustees make this assessment in respect of 2 period of one year fram the date of approval cf the financial statements and
have concladed that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future gnd there are ng material uncertaintes aboot the trust's sbility to continue 3s a going concern, thus they continug
to adoat the doing cocncern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

1.3, Income

All incoming resoJrces are recadnised when the Trust has entitlerment to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount
can be measured reliably.

. Grants

Grants are mngluded in the Statement of Financiat Activities on a receivaote basis, The dalance of income received far
specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the reievant funds an the balance sheet. Where income
is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is Nt unconditiona: entitlement to the
incorme and ‘ts recognition is deferred ano included in creditors as deferred incorre until the performance-related
corditians are met Where entitlement occurs befare incame 1s received, the income 1s accrued

General Annual Grant is recognised ir full in the Statement of Finencial Activities in the year for which itis receivable
and any abarerment in respect cf the petiod is Seducted from income and recognisen 3s & Lability

Canital grants are recogrused when there 5 entitlerment when performance relatec conditions have been met and a'e

not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expenced. Unaspent amounts of capita. crant a-e reflected -n the
balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.
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*  Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the Trust which amounts to a donation is recognised 1a the Statement of Financial
Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions}, where the receipt

is probable and it can he measiired reliahly

*  Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no perforimance-related conditions) where the receipt
is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

= Qther Income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the Trust has
provided the goods or services.

*  Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of
sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Incorme from other tragding activities'.
Upon sale, the value of the stoek is charged against ‘Inceme from other trading activities’ and the croceeds are
recognised as ‘incorme from other trading activities'. where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume
cof low vaiue items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold. This income Is recagnised
within 'Incorme from other trading activities’.

®  Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liahilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are
measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass
to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recegnised as transfer on conversion within Donations and capital

drant income to the net assets received.
*  Transfer of existing academies into the acaderny trust

Where assets and liahilities are receved on the transfer of an existing academy into the acadermy trust, the transferred
net assets aje measured at fai value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the 1isks and rewards of
ownership pass to the academy tiust An egual amount of income is recegnised for the transfer of an existing acadery .
into the acagemy trust within Donations and capital grant mcome to the net assets acquired

»  Donated fixed assets

Wiere the dorated gocd is a fixed asset It is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to meéasure this reliably, in
which €ase the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as incaome from dorations and a
correspondirg amount is included in the aporogriate fixed asset cateqory and depreciated over the-useful econorric Life
in accordance with the acaderry trust's accaunting policies.

The freehold title of the land from whick Buile Hill Acadermy operates ic owned by Salford City Counci.. Consitium
Acadermies entered into a lease agreement with Salford City Countil for the land and butdings from which Buile Hitt
Academy operates. The lease is for a peppercorn rent for 125 years from 1 August 2016 except for an earlier terminatior

of the funding agreement

Tre building was built under the Private Frnance Iritiative (PFI) and is subject to ar agreement between Salfard City

Council and MAMG Asset Manaderment Group Uimited, the PFI Contractar. The grademy trust has entered into &
syppltermentary schools’ agreemaert with Salford City Council concerning the PH agreement. Under the terms of the

ch
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for the Year Ended 31% Auqust 2022 (continued)

agreement the academy is committed to paying Salford City Council a proportion of its budget ‘n cansideration for the
Council paying the PFI Contractor the unitary charge under the PFI agreement.

“he freehold title of the tand from which Moorside High School operates is owned by Satford City Council. Consitium
Academies entered into a lease agreement with Salford City Councit for the land ang buildings from which Moorside
Higk Schoot operates. The lease is for a peppercorn rent for 125 vears from 1 April 2018 except for an earlier termination
of the funding agreement.

The buitcing was built under the Private Finance Initiative ('PFI) and 1s subject to ar agreement between Saltorg City
Council and SPIC Facilities Management, the PFI Contractor. The acadermy trust has entered into & supplementary
schools’ agreement with Satford City Courcil concerning the PFI agreement. Under the terms of the agreement the
academy is committed ta paying Salford City Council a proportion of its budget in consideration for the Council paving
the PF Cartractor the unitary charge under the P agreement

It is the opinion of the Trustees that the terms of the lease agreement and the supplemertary school's agreements
transfer substantially all therisks and rewards of cwnership of the assets to the academy trust and therefore the assets
are recogrised on the balance sheet as a fixed asset, with a carresponding entry to the statement of financiai activities
in the period of transfer from the local authonty.

The buildings were valued at conversion at depreciated replatement cost and are being depreciated over the remainder
of their expected useful tives

Land is being depreciated over the period of the lease

Payments to Salford City Councit in consideration for the Councit paying the unitary charge ta the PFi Contractors are
ir respect of maintenance of premises, utiiities, catering, grounds maintenance, facilittes management {caretaking,
clegning), furniture ano ICT infrastructure and lifecycle maintenance. As sJch, they have been analysed under
appropriate expense heading in the statement of financial activities in the period to which they relate.

1.4. Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there 1s a ledal or constructive abhigation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is
nrobatle that a transfer of economic penefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation ¢an be
megasured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each actwity are rnade up of the total of direct costs and shared costs,
includirg support costs nvalved in undertaking each activity Direct costs attributable to a single activity zre allocated
directly to that activity, Shared casts wnich contribute to more than one activity and support costs wnich are not attributable
t7 a single activity are appartioned between thase activities an a bas:s consistent with tre use of resaurces. Central staff
costs are sllocated on the hasis of fime spenrt, ard deprec:ation charges ailocated ar te portion of the asset’s use

= Expenditure on Raising Funds

Tris includes all expenditure incurred by the academy Trust 1o raise funds for 11s cnaritable purposes and includes costs
of all fundraising activities events ard nan-charitabie trading.

«  Charitable Activities

These are costs ircurred on the academy Trust's educaticnal operatiors te further its charitable aims for the benefit of
its peneficianes, including support costs and costs retating to the governance of the gcademy Trust appcrioned 1o
chantable actvities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irecoverable VAT
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1.5. Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised and recodnised when future economic benefits are probable ang
the cost or value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are
subseguently measured at cost net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. Amorusation is provided on
intangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-Line basis over its expected

useful tife, as follows:

Purchased computer software over 3 years straight line

1.6. Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision far impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government cr from the
private sector, they are inciuded in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic tife
Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the continued use of the asset, the related grants
are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial
activities. Where tanginle fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged

tc the unrestricted fund,

Nepreciation is provided on ait tangible fixed assets, sa as to write off the cost of assets ipss theil residual values over their
useful lives on the foliowing bases

Leasehold land over the remaining lease term

Inherited buildings over the remainder of the life of the builgings
Furniture and equipment 15% reducing balance

{omputer equipment 3 years straignt tine

Assets in the course of constryction are incleded at cost. Depreciation on these assets & not charded until they are Drought
into use.

A roview for impairment of a fixed asset is carried oJt if events or chandes in circumstances indicate that the carrying vaiue
of any fixed asset may not be recoverabie. Shortfalls between tne carrying valde of fixed assets and their recoveradle
amaounts are recognised as impakrments, Impairment 10sses are recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Long leaseho.d property is held on a 125 year lease from the predecessor locat authority an terms which restrict its use to
the aperation of an acadermy. it was valued on transfer at depreciated replacement cost

1.7.  Liabilities

Liabhities are recognised when there 1s an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event. it is prebable that
a transfer of econemic benefit wil. 0f required in settiement, and the amount of the settiement can be estimated reliably.
Liablities are recognised at the amoant that the academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it
has recewved as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1.8. Provisions

Prowvisions are recognised when the academy Trust has an pbligation at the reporting date as a resu’t of a past event which
it is probable wall result 1n the transfer of cconomic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the ameunts required to settle the abligation. Where the effect cf the time
vatue of money is materizl, the provision is based on the present value of thcse ameunts, distounted at the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The umwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and
similar charqes.

1.9. leased Assets

Rentals payable under cperating leases are charded against ncorme on a straight line nasis over the period of the lease.

1.10. Financial Instruments

The acadermy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102 The financial assets and financial liabilities
of the acaderny trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets — trade and cther dabters are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost as oetalled ‘n note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments. Amounts due to the chanity’s wholly owned
subsidiary are held at face value less any impairment.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial Liabilities — trade creditors, accruals and other creditars are financial instruments, and are measured at amarused
cost as detailed 1n notes 15 and 16. Taxaticn and social security are not included in the financial instruments disciosure
definition. Deferred income 15 nct ceemed 10 be a financial liability, as the cash settiement has already taken place and
trere 15 an abligation to deliver services ratner than cash or another financial instrument Amounts due to charity's wholly
cwned subsidiary are betd at face vaiue less any impairment.

1.11. Taxation

Trie acadeny Trust s consigered to pass the tests set cwt in Paragraph 1 Scneoule 6 of the Finance Act 201C and therefore
it meets the definiticn of a charitable company for UK corporaticn tax purposes.

Accardindly, the acaderry Trust is potentially exempt from taxatior 1n respect of inceme or capital gains received witnin
categaries covered hy part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 o Section 256 cf the Taxation of Chargeable Gains
Act 1952 tothe extent that cucn income or gairs are appled exclusively tc charitable purpases

1.12. Pension Benefits

Retitement penefite <o employees of the Trust are orovided by the Teachers Persicn Schere (TPSY) and the Lecel
Governyment Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are definec tenefit schermes

The TPS i< an unrfunded screme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the wost of pensicns over employees’
working lives with the T-ust 1n such 3 way that the pension cost is @ substantielly level percentade of current and future
pensionable payroll The centributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the Dasis cf quaorennial valyations
using 3 projected urit credit method. TPS is an unfunoed multi-empleyer schere with ro underlying assets tC 3ss'gn
between employers. Consequently, tre TPS is treated as a defired contrisution scheme for accounting pJarposes and the
contributions recagnised n the period to which they reiate '

The LGPS is a funded multi-ermmpiloyer scheme and the ascets are etd separately from those of the Tryst i separate trustee
admn-stered funde Fensior scheme assets are meacured at far value and Liadilities are measu-ed an an actuanal basis
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using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the cuient 1ate of returm on a bigh quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liahilities The actuarial valuations are abtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amaunts charded to operating surplus are the current service costs and
the costs of screme intraductians, benefit changes, settlerments angd curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs
as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit asset/Liability 1s also recadnised in the Statement of Financial Activities
and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit pbligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
muitiplying the fair vatue of the scheme assets at the beginning of the perod by the rate used to discount the benefit
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets

is recognised in ather 1ecognised dains and ipsses

Actuarial dains and losses are recognised immmediately in other recogrised gains and losses.

1.13. Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable gbjects of
the Trust at the discretion of the trustees .

Restricted fixed asset funds are resaurces which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where
the asser acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/denor and
include grants from the Department for Education Group.

1.14. Criticat accounting estimates and areas af juddement

Estimates and juddements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonabie under the circumstances

Criticat accounting estimates and assurnptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future 7The resuiting accounting estimates and
assumptions wilt, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material agjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Gavernmenrt Pension Scheme defined benefit Liability depends on a number of factors that
are determined on an actuanial basis using & variety of assumiptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost
(incarme) for pensicns incluge the discount rate. Any chandes in these assymptians, wiick are disclosed in note 26, will
impact the carrying amcunt of the persiar Hahility. Furtnermare 3 rall forward approach which prajects results from the
latest fu!l actuarial valuation perfarmed at 31 Maich 2019 has been vsed by the actuary in valuing the pensions lighility
at 31" August 2022 Any differences betwseen the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuar:al
valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension Liability

2. Donations and Capitat Grants

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Tatal
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capnta! giants ' - 944 944 1,232
ther donations and grants 1 1 3
Consted fixed assets 160 160 333
- 1,105 1,105 1,568

Total for the peioc enging 31 Auguet 2321 - 1568 1,568
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3. Funding for the Trust's Educational Operations
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds c02e 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
DfE / €SFA drants
Genpral annual grant (GAG) 38.696 318,696 35522
ITT Bursaries Grant - 388
Cther DfE / ESFA qgrants
Pupsl Premium 2413 2,413 2,383
QOther DfE / ESFA 1.454 1,454 2966
Other DFE Group granis - c45
42 563 42,563 41,504
Gther govermment grants
loca, authority grants c.056 2,056 1,338
Other grants and weome from the academy trust s educational operaticns 121 8% 210 66
121 2.145 2,266 1408
121 44,708 44,829 42,909
Tota. for the perind eading 31 Audust 2021 7427.7‘.7902 42,909
4. Other Trading Activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£EQOO EQOO £000 £000
Hire of facilities 138 138 195
Ircorme from anci’an, trading activities £00 600 541
738 - 738 736
“otal for the period ending 31 August £021 736 736
5. Investrnent income
Unrestiicted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£000 EGQO0 £000 £000
Bank rieiestreceved 1 1 H
1 - 1 1
1 1

"otat for the penod ending 21 August ¢0Z1
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6. Expenditure
Non Pay Expenditure

Staff Total Total
Costs  Premises Other 2022 2021
£00G0 E00Q EOQOD £000 EQOC
Trust's coucational operations.
- Direct costs 29,826 3,324 3,122 36,442 34,869
- Allotated supporl Losts 7,750 3,571 478G 16,053 14,637
-SUTT - - - - 592
37,678 6,915 7,902 52,495 50,098
Net expenditure for the period includes:
Total Total
2022 2021
£000 £000
Operating (ease rentals 107 104
Depreciatian and amartisation 3,951 3,827
Faes payable to auditor for - '
- Audin 35 36
- Other services 1 3
7. Charitable Activities
Total Total
2002 2021
£000 £000
Ddirect €osts - ecutational operatinns 36,447 34.86¢%
Direct costs - S0ITT - 587
Support costs - educatnnal operations 16,053 14,637
52,495 50,098

31



Consilium Academles o
@ Consilium

Notes to the Financial Statements Brateir e
for the Year Ended 31 Audqust 2022 (continued)

Analysis of support costs

Total Totat
2022 © 2021
£000 £000
Suppoert staff costs 7752 7032
Depreciation 556 550
Technoiogy costs 464 294
Premises costs 2,965 2,243
Other support costs 4260 4,250
GCVEernance costs 56 68
Total support casts 16,053 14,637
8. Staff Costs
a.  Staff costs during the period were:
Yotal Total
2022 2021
EQOO £000
Wages and salares 24,622 24.357
Social secutity costs 2,589 2,387
Operating costs of defired benefit persion schemes 8,165 7161
Apprenticeshig levy 107 96
35,483 34,001
Supply staff costs <003 1.464
Staff restructunng costs 192 568
37,678 36,034
Staff restroctuning coste comprom se:
Regundancy payrments "58 278
Severerce Layments 133 290
192 569
b. Severance payments
The academy trust pald 26 severance payrents in the year. disclosed in e following bands.
£O0- £25 000 23
£250C1 - £50,00C 3

c. Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

Incluged in staff restructuring Costs are nor-statutory/non-contractual severance paymerts totalling £132,941 (2021:
£289,86E) 'ngividaally. the payments werer £15000, £12,953. £11,119. £10,391, £9.650. £9.240 [8636, £8475
£8,232,£7.758,£7.413.£7,294. £4 624, £4,402, £37C7 £2.950. £1. £1.£1. £1. 1 and £1 Ir 3l cases tnese agreements
nave been reacned because they represent the best value far the Trust.
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d. Staff numbers

The average number of persons ermployed by the Trust during the period was as follows'

2022 2021

No. No.

Teachers 331 330
Administration and support 361 342
Managernent 63 68
755 740

e Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension costs ang employer national insurance
contributions) exceeded £60.000 was

2022 2021

No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 12 13
£70,001 - £80,000 13
£820,001 - £90,000 3

£S0,001 - £100.000 3 6

E100,001 - £130.000 3 b

£110,001 - £12C,000 3 1

£120,001 - £130,000 - 1
£130,001 - £140,000 1

- 1

E140,001 - £2150.000

f. Key ménagemeni personnel

The key managerment personnel of the Trust compnise the trustees and the senior management feam as listed nn page 1
The total ameunt of employee benefits {including emplayer pension contributions ard employer national insuranre
contributions) received by key managermnent persannel for their sefvices to the gcademy tust was £938,179 (2021:

£793,862).
9. Trustees' Remuneration and Expenses ,

There was no trustees’ remuneration durirg the ceriod {2021: £nil) Doring the perioc ended 31 August 2022, travel and
subsistence expenses totalking £242 was reimbursed to one Local Academy Board Member (2021: £B6).

10. Trustees and Officers Insurance

The Trust has opted into the Department of Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance
whnere UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officer from c.aims arising from
negligent acts, errors or-omissions occuring whilst on academy business, ano provides cover up to £10,000,000 -t s not
oossible to quant:fy the trustees angd officer indernnity eierment fram the oversll cost of the RPA scheme.

[o%]
[w]
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11, Central services

The trust has provided the foilowing central services during the year: Chief Executives Office. Business Flanning and
Strateqgy, (entral HR and Training, Ledal, Internal and External Communications. IT, Central Finance and Procurement,
Governance, Educaticnal Improverment and £states Support. As from 2020 the academy trust, in line with the funding
agreement with the Deosartment for kducation pools the General Annual Grant {GAG) and therefore does nct recharge out

central services.

12. Tangible Fixed Assets

Leasehold Furniture
Land and and Computer 2022
Buildinds  Egquipment Hardware Total
£000 EQQO £000 £000
Cost
AL 1 September 2021 124,914 1679 2,067 128,660
Additions 346 210 363 €48
Disposals
At 31 Avudust 2022 125,260 1,889 2,460 128,609
Depreciation
At L September 2021 14,069 /44 1.424 1b,237
Chargein yea 3,394 150 407 2951
Disprsals -
At 31 Auqust 2022 17,463 894 1,831 20,188
Net book values
At 31 August 2021 110.845 935 643 112,423
At 31 Audust 2022 107,797 985 629 109,421
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13, intangible assets

Cost

At 1 September 2021
Additions

Disposats

AC31 August 2022

Cepraciation

At 1 September 021
Charge in year
Bisposals

At 31 August P2

Met book valyes
At 31 Audust 2001

At 31 August 2022

14 Debtors

Ttade pebiors
VAT recoverabie

Other debiors

“repayrients ang atcived income

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade ¢ editgrs

Otner axatian ang 20018l secLty
Dtrer credito s

{oans

Aziiuals ang el red e gme

35
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Computer
Software
£000
22
—_—
22
——_RE
22
—
22
_
————
Total Totat
coee 2021
£00D EGQO
26 42
507 &33
28 ip
1,189 1en
1,750 2,118
Total Total
2pee 2021
£000 EQOO
1,138 1,174
622 637
868 591
1
1.05%8 550
——
3,736 2,952
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Total Total
2dee 2021
E0Q0D £000
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 90 60
Released from previous yea's {90) (60)
Resources deferred in the year ~0e 90
Deferred income at 31 August 102 90

Deferred income relates to funded income which has not been fully expended mamly in relation to rates retief and funds
received in advance for SEN for autumn term 2022,

16. Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

Totat Totai

2022 2021

F000 £Q00

Loans 41 51
41 51

included within loars is a Salix lean cof £50,504 (2021: £50,504) The loan was provided from the ESFA in agreement wilh
Salix Frnance Ltd for a Salix Energy Efficiency Fund which is provided on the following terms; no interest charded ar security
provided and repaid in equat instalments biannually for a period of 5 years starting September 2022.

17, Funds
Batance at 1 fncoming Respurces Gains, Balance at
September Resources Expended losses and 31 August
2021 Transfers c02¢e
£000 £O00 £000 £000 £000
Restricted general funds
Genera annual grant 530 38636 (38,276, {125 725
J:ker grants - 6,013 00613 : -
Pension reserve {(71.274) - 12.B38) 21,715 (2,397)
{2C,744} 44,709 {47,227) 21,580 {1,672}
Restricted fixed asset funds
'nrerited funds 105,362 - - - 105,361
DFE/ESFA Zapiial grants 8736 1,204 (4.377] - 5,463
Capita enpendrue from GAC 246 - {121} izt 250
114 343 11064 (£,498. 128 111,074
Total restricted funds 93,599 45,813 (51.725) 21,715 109,402
Unrestricted funds
Jnresticied funds 863 860 {770, - 953
Total unrestricted funds 863 860 {770} - 953
Total funds 94,462 46,673 (52,495) 21,715 110,355
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The acadesmy trust is not subject to GAG carried farward timits.
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as foltows:
Balance at 1 tncoming Resources Gains, Balance at
September Resources Expended Losses and 31 August
2020 Transfers 2021
EGQO £QO0 £000 £000 £G0D
Restricted general funds
General annuat grant BO1 35,521 (35,101) {691) 530
Other grants - 7.381 (7.391) . -
Ponsion reserve {1,913 - {1,589) (1,372} (21,274}
(17,112 42912 (44,481) (2,063} {20,744)
Restricted fixed asset funds
nherited funds 112,788 - (3,416} (3,511} 105,361
Dfe/ESFA capial grants ; 4,406 1,965 {748} 3,510 8,736
Capital expenditure from GAG (4%) 291 46
116,684 1,565 (4,207) 291 114,343
Total restricted funds 99,582 44,477 {48,688) (1,772) 33,599
Unrestricted funds
Jnrestricted funds 1,038 835 (1,410) 400 863
Total unrestricted funds 1,038 835 {1,410) 400 863
100,620 45,312 (50,098) (1,372} 54,462

Total funds

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general fund
This fund represents grants received for the Academy's aperationat activities and development.

Fixed assets fund
These drants relate to funding from the DfE, ESFA and orivate sponsars to carry out works of a capital nature as part of the

schoo! improvernent plan.

Other restricted funds

These funds relate to mnnies rereived frorn the loral government, private sectar and private sponsors to carry out wiorks of
a capital of revenue nature.

Unrestricted funds
This fund prirarily relates to income from tettings ancillary trading activities,

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund valances fur each ataderny at 31 August 2022 and 31 August 2021 were ze'o, hence g breakdovwn by academy is not
included ir tnese accourts Operating funds for the trust are in sa-plus of £1 678k These are presented as a trust halance
due to Consitium adopting a 'GAS Poaling’ approach. Tris will allow the trust to extend financial plans in order to ersure
that financial resources are used to best effect for all students acrass the trust and provide an equality of opportunity for

alt students in the trust.
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Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as fallows:
Teaching & Other Other costs
Educational support  Educational (excluding 2022 2021
Support Staff staff Supplies  depreciation) Tetal Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £600 £000
Armthorpe Academy 2414 636 146 537 3,733 3,450
"Buyile Hilt Academy 4,124 686 558 1478 6,846 6.836
Ellesmere Park High School 3412 927 328 569 5236 4981
Hewerth Grange Schoot 4898 1457 502 813 7.670 7,804
Moorside High School 4,568 500 308 1,760 7,236 7.230
Thernhiill Acagemy 3,058 621 222 588 4,489 4440
Washington Academy 3,079 467 235 735 4,516 4,281
Wyvern Academy 7.392 683 152 475 3,702 4,060
Consilium Evelve 165 118 46 11 140 44
Central 1,816 155/ 215 1,188 4.776 3,045
29,926 7,752 712 /154 48,544 46171

18. Analysis of Net Assets between Funds

Fund balances at 317 August 2022 are represented by,

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Funds
Funds General Fixed Asset 2022
Funds Funds

£000 £0G0 £000 £000

Tangible fivag assets 109,421 109,421
Current assets 953 4451 1,704 7108
Current Liabilities - (3.726) (10} {3.736)
Nor-cusrent Lablities (41} (41)
Persicn scheme tiabitity - (2,397} 2,397)
Total net assets 953 (1,672) 111,074 110,355
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Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Unrestricted Restricted Restritted Total Funds

Funds General Fixed Asset 2021
Funds Funds

£QOO ECO0 £000 £000

Tangible tixed assets - 112,423 112 423
Current assets 863 3482 1,971 £,31¢€
Current Liabilities - (2.952) - {c,952)
Non-curnent Liab Lities (51) (51)
Pension scheme Liabitity (21.274) - (21,274}
Tatal net assets 863 (20,744) 114,343 94,462

18. Capital Commitments
There were n¢ capital cermmritiments at the vear end.
20. Long-term cormmitments, including operating leases

3) Commitments under Operating Leases

At 315 August 2022 the total of the academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancetlable operating
leases was:

Total Total

2022 2021

£000 £000
Amounts due withir one year 85 113
Amaunts due between one and flue years 128 204
Armaunts due after tive years

223 317

b) Other contractual commitments - Private Finance Initiative

The building fram which the Buile Hill Visual Arts College operates was bailt under the Private Finance initiative ('PFI'Y and
is subject tc an agreement between Salford City Council and MAMG Asset Management Group Limited, the PFi Contracler.
The acaderny trust has entered into a supplementary scnocls’ agreement witn Salford City Councit concerning the PFl
Adreemenrt. Under the terms of the adreement the academy is committed to peying Satfurd City Cauncil a proporticn of its
buddget in consideratior for the Council paying the PFI Contracter the undary charger under the PR agreement.

For the pericd ended 31 August 2021, payment te Salford City council under this agreerment totalling £1,045,324 (2021
£993,149) have besn included 1 the Staterment of Finarcial Activities.

The agreemenrt runs until 31 Avgust 2033 anc the estimated annual cost 15 £1,075,000.

The owiding from which the Moo-sice High Scheol operates was built urder the Private Frarce In'tiative ('PFY) and is
subject to an adreerrent between Salforg City Council and SPIE Facilities Management, the PFi Contractor. The academy
trust has entered irto a supplementgry agreermnert witn Salfard City Council concerrirg the PRI Agreement Under terms of
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the agreement the academy is committed to paying Satford City Council a proportion of its budget in consideration for the
Council paying the PFI Contractor the unitary charge Jnder the PRI adgreernent,

For the period ended 31 August 2021 payments to Satferd City Councit under this agreement totalling £1,477,531 (2021:
£1,433.279) have been included ir the Statement of Financial Activities.

The agreement rurs until 31 Auqust 2040 and tne estimated annual cost 15 £1,477,000

21. Reconciliation of Net Expenditure to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

20272 2021

£000 EQOC
Net income/{expendiure) for the reporund period (as per staternent (5,822) (4,786}
of financiat activities)
Adjustec for:
Cap#ta. grants from DE. capital donations and other capital income {1,105) {1,568)
interest receivable (Note 5) {1) (1
Decrease/(increase) in stoces
Defined benefil pension scheme cost iess contributions payable (Note £6) 2474 1683
{efined benefit pension scheme finance C0SUNSLe 26) 364 306
Depieciation (Note 12} 3951 3827
iIncrezze)/decrease in debtors 368 (B25)
{Decrease) in credizo-s 774 97
Net cash provided by / (used In) aperating activities 1,003 (1,167)
22. Cash flows from investing activities

Total Total

2022 2021

£000 £000
Div dend, interest gnd rents fror invesunents 1 1
Purckase of tangiple fixed assets . 1949) {1.179)
Capital grants from DIE/ESFA 1,105 1.568
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities 157 390
23.  Analysis of cash and cash equivaients

Total Total

2022 2021

£000 £000
Cashin hane ard &t bark 5338 4.198
Tetal cash and cash equivaients 5,358 4,198
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24.  Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1 September Cashflows Loans At 31 August

2021 c022

£000 £000 £000 £000

Lashin hanc ard at bark 4,198 1,160 5,358
Loans fatling due in less than one yea {10) [10)
Loars falling due after mare than one year (51) - 10 (41}
4,147 1,160 - 5,307

25  Members Liability

Each member of the charitable cormpany undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being
wound up while he ar she is a3 member, or within gne year after he or she ceases to be a member. such amount as may be
required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and lisbitities contracted before he or she ceases to be a member.

26. Pension and Similar Obligations

The acaderny Trust's empioyees belong to two principal pension schiemes: The Teachers' Pension Scheme England and
Wales (TPS} for academic staff and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff,
which is managed by South Yarkshire Pension Fund, Greater Manchester Pension Fung, Tyne & Wear Pension Fund ang
Durham County Council Pension Fung. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schermes.

The tatest actuariat valuation of the TPS related 1o the period ended 317 March 2016 and of the LGPS 10 the periad ended
31* March 2019

Contnbutions amounting to £59%,7 37 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2022 (2621 £570,738) and are included
within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

introduction

The Teachers Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Penision
Scheme Reguiations 2014 Membership is autarmatic for teachers in atademies. All teachers have the aption to opt-out of
the TPS fallowing enrolment

The TPS is an unfunded scheme ta which bath twe member and emiplayer make contribationrs, as a percentage of satary —
these contributions are credited ta the Exchequer Retirement and other pensior tenefits are paid by public funds provided

by Parliament.
Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actaarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Public Service Penctans (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HiM Treasury every 4
years. Tre aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valyations are dependent on
assumptions about the value of ‘uture costs, design of benefits and mrany other factors The (atest actvarial valuation of
the TPS was carried out as at 31 Marcn 2016, The valuation repcrt was published by the Departrment fer Education an 5
March 2019 The key elerments of the valuation and subsequent consaltation are:

s Employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (ndiuding a 0 08% administration levy)
a  Totat scheme Liabitities {pensions currently in payment ang the estimated tost of future benefits) for service 1o the
effectve date of £218,100 muilion and notional assets {estimated future contnbutions together with the notional
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investments held at the valuation date} of £196,1G0 million, qiving a notianal past service deficit of £22,000
mitlion.

= The SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used o determine the notional investiment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4%
above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate
of real earnings grawth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is
4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented fram 1 April 2024.

The emplayer's aension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £3,756,447 (2021: £3,776,941),
A copy of the vaiuation report and supporting documentation is an the Teachers’ Pensions website.

under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TRS is an unfunded multti-empioyer pension scheme. “he academy trust has
accounted far its contributians tu the scherme as if it were a defined contibution scheme. The acaderny trust has set out
above the infarmaticn available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets heid in separate trustee-administered funds. Tre
total contribution made for the year ended 31* Aygust 2022 was £2.609,000 (2021: £1,799,000), of whkicn emplayer's
contributions totalled £1,545,000 (2021; £1,391,000} and employees’ contributions totalled £464.000 (2021; £408.000).
The agreed contribution rates for futere years range from 15 3% to 24.7% for employers with emptoyee contributicns of
5 5% to 12.5%.

Parliament has agreed, at the request o the Secietary of State foi Education, to a guarantee inal, in the event of acacemy
closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities woule be met by the Department for Education. Tre
quarantee came into force on 18" July 2013

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 2022 2021
Increase in salaries 3.92% 3.8.%
Uiscount rate 4.22% 1 68%
Inflation 3.04% 2.77%
Incigase in pensIor 2.96% 2 80%

The cusrent mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortatity rates. The assomed
life expectalions or retirement age 65 are

Males retring today 2022 £022
“ernales retiting today 20.3-225 205-225

23224 23.3-253
Maies retiring in 20 years

Fzmales retiving in 20 years 2.6-241 216-240
251-273 253-272
The pensicn in tne acccunts comprisss.
Tatat Total
2022 2021
£000 £000
Def ned benefic pencior s2nermez tiab ity 2,545 21.274
Defined benefi’ pensior scneme asset (152}
2,397 21,274
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The acadery Trust's snare of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Government bonds

Other bunds

Property

Cash and other 'quid assets
Other

Totat market value of assets

Actual return/{loss) on scheme assets

Amaunts recognised in the statement of financiat activities

Current service cost

Net interest cost

Administration Expenses

Past Setvice Lost

Total amount recognised in the SOFA

Changes in the present value of defined benefit gbligations were as follows:

At 1 September

Current seryice cost

Interest cost

Ermployee contributions
AZtuanal [gain) / loss
Benefits paig

Past seryice rnst
Curtalments and settlerments

At 31 August

43

Fair value at

Fair vatue at

31 Avgust 31 August
2022 2021
EQOQ £000

16,298 14.847
435 1,265
4,159 3,942
2,554 1,906
957 2110
1.783 1,980
26,236 25,054
{195} 4,212
Total Total
20ee 2021
£000 £000
4012 3067
364 306

7

7
4,383 3,380
Totat Total
2022 2021
£000 £000
46,328 37.651
4012 3,067
797 658
64 408
(¢2.344) 49¢1
(631} (377}
7

28,633 46,328
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Changes in the fair value of academy trust’s share of scheme assets:

Total Total

2022 2021

£000 £G00

At 1 September 25,054 1G,738
Expected return on assets 433 352
Actuar al {lnss) / gain (629) 3,549
emplayer coatrnibutions 1,545 1,391
Ermplayee contributions 464 408

Benelits paid 631 (377)

Administranon Expenses - %
At 31 Auqust 26,236 25,054

27. Related party transactions

There were no related party fransactions n the perieds ending 31 August 2022

44




Consilium Academies .
@ Consilium

Notes to the Financial Statements Ateoemies
for the Year Ended 31 Auqust 2022 (continued)

28. School Centred Initial Teaching Training Trading Account

2022 2022 2021 2021
£300 £000 £000 £000
fncome
Direct Income
Bursaty Income 388
Tuition Fees 272
Other Income
Fundraising and otrer -
Trading activittes
660

Total Income

Expenditure
Direct Costs
Direct staff costs - 106

Staff gevelopment 74

Other girect costs 412

Total direct costs 592

Total expenditure (592)
(68}

Transfers between funds excluding depreciaticn
Surplus / (Deficit) from all sources
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2021

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2022
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independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance
Report on Regqularity to Consilium Academies and the
Education and Skills Funding Agency

Conciusion

We have carped out an engagermnent in accordance with the terms of our endadement letter dated 22 April 2C21 and further to
the requirements of the Education and Skitis Funding Agency ('ESFA’) as inctuded In the extant Framework and Guide for External
Auditars and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts, 1o obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure g'sbursed
and income received by Consilium Acaderntes during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have been apphied 1o the
purposes identif ed by Partiament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

In the course of our work, nothing has come ta ow attentionwhich suggests that in all matenat respects the expenditure disbursed
and income recelved during the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not Leen applied to purposes intended tiy
Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the autherities which govern them.

Basis for conclusion
The framework that has been applied 1s set out in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporiing

Accauntants of Academy Trusts. We are independent of Consilium Academies in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are applicable to this engagernent and we have fulfilled ous ethical requirements in accordance with these requirements. e
believe the assurance evidence we have obtained is sufficient to provide a basis for our conclusion.

Responsibilities of Consilium Academies’ accounting officer and trustees

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Lonsilium Acadermies’ funding agresrnent with the Secretary of
State ‘or Education dated 21 November 2014 and the Academies Trust Handbook extant from 1 September 2021, for ensuring
that expenditure disbursed and income received are applied for the purposes intended by Pailiament and the financial
transactions conform ta the authorities which govern therm. The accounting officer is aisc responsible for preparing the Statement
of Regularity, Propriety and Compiiance. The trustees (who are a{so the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
corrpany law} are responsit:e for the prope: conduct and financial operation of Consilium Academies and appointment of the

accounting officer

Reporting Accountant's responsibilities for reperting on regularity

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical quidance and are to
obtain Limited assurance and report in accordance wth our engagement letter and the requirements of the extant Framework
and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountants of Academy Trusts.

The objective of a imited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations n
order to provige us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on redu:arity. A limited assurance
engadement s more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance endagerment ang the procedures performed vary in nature and
timing fom. and are 1ess in extent than for a reascnable assurance engagement; consequently & limed assurance engagernent
does not enable s 1o obtaln assJrance that we would become aware of alt significant matters that mignt be 1dentified in a
reasonable assurance engagement Accoramgly. we do not express @ pasitive opinion.

We report to you whether anything has come 10 our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in a.l material respects,
expenditure dishursed and :ncame received du'ing the period 1 September 2021 to 31 Auqust 2022 have not been applied 10
purposes intended by Parliarment or that the financial transactior:s do not conform to the authorities whici Joverr them

Our work included ioentif.cation and assessment of the design and operat.onai effectiveness of the controls, policies and
procedures that have peen ‘mplemented to ensy e compliance with the framework of author ties inc.uding the specific
requirements of the funding agreement with the Setretary of State for £7ucation, the Acsdermies Trust Handbook 2021 published
by the Education and Skitls Funding Adercy and high leve; firanc a. contro. areas where we identfied a “isk o material irreguiarity
is likely to arise. It also included aress assessed as presentirg a higher nsk of impropriety We undertack detaiied testing, on a
sample bass, based on the identified areas where a mater:ai rregularity 1s likely 10 an1se, of potential Imprepriety where such
areas are in respect of Lontrols, policies and procedures that appiy to classes of transactions  OQur work was undertaken with due
regard to the Evidence to support conclusicn on regularity’ quidance in the extant Framework and Guide for External Auditors

ang Reporting Accourtants of Academy Trusts.

This work was integrated with our audit on the financial statements and eviden:e was a.50 derived from the conduct of thet audit
ta the extent 1t supports the requlanity concius on.

46




Consilium Academies .
@ Consilium

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Academies
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Education and Skills Funding Adency -

Use of our report .
This report 15 made solety to Consilium Academies and the £SFA in accordance with the terms of our endadement {etter dated

12 July 2022. Qur work has been undertaken 5o that we might state to the Consibum Acadermies and the ESFA those matters we
are required to state in g report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by {aw, we do not accept or assume
responsiBility to anyone other than Consilium Acadernies and the ESFA, for gur work, for this report, ar for the conclusion we have

formed.

U U Aot g

RSM UK AUDIT LLP
Charterad Accountants
Bluebell Hayse

Brian jchnsan Way
Preston

PR2 5PE

Date:  09/12/22

47



